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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have Audited the financial statements of Al Gassim Investment Holding Company, a Saudi Joint Stock 
Company ("the Company"), which comprise of statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2021, the 
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 
and notes accompanying to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as on 31 December, 2021 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
ended, in accordance with international financial reporting standards (“IFRSs”) as endorsed in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia, and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for Certified Public 
Accountants (SOCPA). 
 
Basis of opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as endorsed in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of matter 
• We would like to draw attention to Note No. (33) in the financial statements, which indicates that during year 
2018 the Company decided to enter as a founder with a group of independent investors in a Company specializing 
in the manufacture and marketing of dates with a 40% share of the new Company's capital of 100 million Saudi 
riyals. The Company will be contributing the assets of the dates factory and other assets. However, the 
establishment of the new Company was canceled on 19 may 2021, based on the decision of the founding 
committee of Al Qassim Dates Company. Our opinion has not been modified with regard to this matter.  
 
• We draw attention to note No (31) regarding the Company's lawsuit filed against the branch of the Ministry of 
Environment, Water and Agriculture (the “Ministry”) in the Qassim region, which relates to the request to cancel 
the negative decision represented in the branch of the ministry’s refusal to submit to the Supreme Court a request 
for the Company’s ownership of the entire area it revived from the land handed to it. An approval was issued by 
the High Commissioner for the Company to own an area of only 74 million square meters of the total area that 
it revived. The Company has filed a request to the Supreme court claiming ownership of the remaining land 
space that is considered part of the gross land revived amounting to 116 million square meters Note: Assuming 
that the Company loses the law suit, it will fundamentally affect the Company due to the connection of the 
disputed land with the rental income contracts entered into by the Company, which represents the Company’s 
main source of income. 
 
 
 



 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 

 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Emphasis of matter (continued) 
The expected losses can only be determined at the final settlement of the lawsuit. 30 March 2021 AD A 
preliminary ruling from the Administrative Court in the Qassim region relating to  the case filed by the Qassim 
Investment Holding Company against the branch of the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture in the 
Qassim region has been issued not to accept the case, and based on the opinion of the Company’s legal advisor 
that the reason for rejecting the case is due to the lack of jurisdiction of the Administrative Court to consider the 
case and that the concerned party is a committee in the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture. The 
Company received the judgment and objected to it before the Administrative Court of Appeal, and the case was 
registered with No. 446/1442 in the Administrative Court of Appeal in the Qassim region, and the date of the 
first session was set on August 31, 2021 AD. 
 
On May 18, 2021 AD, the Company received a letter from the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture, 
dated 24 Ramadan 1442 AH, regarding the Sheri land, in which the Ministry hopes to pay the same rent  for the 
encroached area, which the Company revived from the date of seizure until the date of 24 Ramadan 1442 AH to 
the state treasury in favor of the Ministry, and since there is an existing lawsuit filed against the branch of the 
Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture, in which the Company demands that the Company cancel the 
decision represented in the ministry’s refraining from submitting to the Supreme Court by requesting the 
Company’s ownership of the entire area that the Company has revived from the land delivered to it. The 
Company objected to the decision on July 14, 2021. The Administrative Court of Appeal in the Qassim region 
issued a ruling to annul the judgment issued on 8/17/1442 AH by the First Circuit of the Administrative Court 
in Buraidah in the case registered in No. (228) for the year 1442 AH, ruling that the case was not accepted, and 
the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture’s negative decision of its abstention regarding the referral 
of the grievance of Al Qassim Investment Holding Company for not owning the entire area that it has revived 
from the land allocated to it to the committee stipulated in Article 10 of the Immigrant Land Distribution System. 
The judgment was received on 03/03/1443 AH, and a request was submitted to file the case to the committee. 
Our opinion is not modified with regard to this matter. 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of financial 
statement as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. For each matter listed below, our description of how our audit have addressed this matter is set below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Key Audit Matters (Continued) 

 
 

How the matter was addressed in our audit Key audit matter  
We performed the following audit procedures among 
others: 
- Confirming the Company's ownership of those 

assets as on 31 December, 2021. 
- Obtaining a report of the fair value of these 

assets as of 31 December, 2021. 
- Evaluating the experiences and qualifications of 

the appraiser and the extent of his independence 
and reading the terms of the contract with him 
to determine whether there are matters that may 
affect the appraiser's objectivity or impose 
restrictions on the scope of his work. 

- Review the evaluation methods and 
methodology and the reasonableness of the 
assumptions used by the appraiser. 

- Comparing the fair value of investment 
properties with their book value to ascertain the 
need to record the impact of the decline in value 
(if material) in the financial statements. 

- Evaluating the appropriateness and adequacy of 
the disclosures in the financial statements in 
accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

Impairment investments in properties  
 
As at 31 December, 2021, the Company had investment 
properties of SR 224,082,091 (2020: SR 217,911,706) 
represented in land plots on which projects leased to others are 
established. 
 
Investment properties are held for the purpose of a rental return, 
capital gains, or both. 
 Investments properties are stated at cost less any impairment 
losses. 
 
According to the requirements of international financial 
reporting standards, the Company’s management must re-
measure investment properties for impairment losses whenever 
events or changes in circumstances arise that indicate that the 
book value may not be recoverable and the effect of re-
measurement is reflected at the value in which the recoverable 
value exceeds book value of those investments. 
 
To assess the decline in the investment properties' value, the 
Company's management hired a certified and independent real 
estate appraiser to carry out a valuation on an annual basis. 
 
The fair value measurement of investment properties and 
determining the impairment were considered a key audit matter 
because: - 
- Fair value measurement requires significant estimates and 

assumptions that may be uncertain in nature. 
 
- The potential impact of the fair value measurement may be 

material on the statement of financial position and the  
Company's business results. 

 
Please refer to note (5) which includes the accounting policy of 
investment properties and impairment in value, and note (7) for 
the disclosure of details of investment properties and its fair 
value. 



 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Key Audit Matters (Continued) 
 

How the matter was addressed in our audit Key audit matter 
We performed the following audit procedures among 
others: 
 
- Review the appropriateness of the applied accounting 

policy to determine the type and classification of 
financial assets according to the business model. 

- Review the method of conducting the valuation and 
the appropriateness of the inputs to valuation of those 
assets. 

- Confirming the Company's ownership of those assets 
as of 31 December, 2021 

- Obtaining a report of the fair value of these assets as 
of 31 December, 2021. 

-  Evaluating the extent of the external evaluator's 
independence and reading the terms of contracting 
with him to determine whether there are matters that 
may affect the evaluator's objectivity or impose 
restrictions on the scope of his work. 

- Compare the fair value of the financial assets with 
their book value to ascertain the need to record the 
effect (if material) in the financial statements. 

- Evaluating the appropriateness and adequacy of the 
disclosures in the financial statements in accordance 
with the International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Fair value of financial assets  
 
- As at 31 December, 2021, the Company had 

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
of SR  15,034,407 (2020:  13,677,264 SR) 
represented in equity instruments in companies 
that not listed in the financial market in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 

 
In accordance with the requirements of international 
financial reporting standards, the Company's 
management must evaluate those assets at fair value, 
and determining the fair value of the assets requires 
the exercise of estimates and assumptions. 
 
The Company determines the fair value and relies on 
the evaluation of those assets by an independent, 
accredited external evaluator. 
 
The fair value measurement was considered a key 
audit matter because  :-  
 
- Fair value measurement requires significant 

estimates and assumptions that may be uncertain 
in nature. 

 
-  The potential impact of the fair value 

measurement may be material on the statement of 
financial position and the Company's business 
results. 

 
- Please refer to note (5) that includes the 

accounting policy regarding the value of financial 
assets, and note (13) for the disclosure of 
financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss .    

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 
 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Key Audit Matters (Continued) 
  

How the matter was addressed in our audit Key audit matter 
We performed the following audit procedures among 
others: 
- Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies related to revenue recognition, as per 
International Financial Reporting Standards no 15 
Revenue from contracts with customers. 

- Test of details for sample of products sold and 
verifying the proper application of revenue 
recognition policy 

- Performing analytical procedures to understand the 
reasons for the changes in revenues compared to the 
previous year, and to verify its reasonableness, and 
to determine if there are significant fluctuations that 
need additional examination in light of our 
understanding of the current market conditions. 

- Performing sales cutoff test to make sure that 
revenue recorded in proper period.  

 
- Testing the design and effectiveness of internal 

control procedures regarding the recognition of its 
revenues and trade receivables related 

Revenue recognition: 
 
As at 31December, 2021, the Company recognized 
revenues in the amount of SR 11,372,882 (2020: SR 
11,657,910). 
Revenue recognition was considered a key audit 
matter because: - 
 
- Revenue is considered a Key Audit Matter as it's 

an essential element of the Company's 
performance and its operations, and because  it 
include inherent risk  that management may 
override internal controls by showing its 
recognized revenue over actual results to show 
that Company achieve its goals and to improve  
the Company results.  

 
- Please refer to Note No. (5) which includes the 

accounting policies related to revenue 
recognition, and Note No. (24) which clarifies 
the revenue details. 

 
Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of information contained in the 
Company's annual report for the financial year ended 31 December, 2021 other than the Company's financial 
statements and our report thereon. It is expected that the annual report will be available to us after the date of 
this report. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not and will not express 
any form of assurance or conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with the audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
specified above when it is available, and in doing so we take into account whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or with our knowledge obtained during the audit, or appears 
to be materially misstated. 
 
When we read the annual report, if we believe that there is a material misstatement, we report the matter to those 
charged with governance. 
 
 



 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 
The management is responsible for preparation and fair presenting the financial statements in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the 
other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA, the applicable requirements of regulations of companies, 
the Company's Articles of Association, and for such internal control as management determined is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to remain 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Company or cease its operations or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process 
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs") that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance 
with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs") as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.   
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate to those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during the audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 
 
Among the matters that have been communicated to those charged with governance, are the identification of 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the current year, and 
therefore, the key audit matters for the audit are considered and we clarify these matters in our report unless the 
system or regulation prevents public disclosure of the matter, or when in circumstances extremely rare, we 
believe that the matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED) 

 
To the Shareholders of  
Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
Based on the information that has been made available to us while performing our audit procedures, nothing has 
come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Company is not in compliance, in all material respects, 
with the applicable requirements of the Regulation for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the 
Company’s Articles of Association in so far as they affect the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
 
For Al-Bassam & Co. 
 
 
 
 
 
Ibrahim Ahmed Al-Bassam 
Certified Public Accountant 
License No. (337) 
 
Al-Qassim, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
28 Shabaan 1443 AH 
March 31, 2022 



Al Gassim Investment Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
Strtemert of Finsncial Position
As et 3l December 2021
(All amounts are in Saudi Riyal unless othcrwise stated)

Note

28,t91,89t
224,O82,091

r r,689,s88
139,585,454

3l December 2020
Restated note 33)

29,520,t69
217,9lL,706

t2,085,322
132,938,530

ASE
Non-currellt assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Installment sales contracts'debtoN - Non curent portion
lnvestment in fi[ance lease contracts- Non cuffent portion
Total non-curreot lsscts

Curretrt assets
lnveotories
Trade rcceivables
lnstallrnent sales contracts' debtors - current portion
lnvestment in finance lease contacts - cu.rcnt portion
Prepayme[ts aod other reccivables
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Total curreDt ass€ts
TOTAL ASSETS

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
Statutory r€serve
Other reserve
Accumulated losses
Total Eqrity

LIABILITTES
Notr current liabilities
Employees' post employment benefi ts
Deferred revedue
Total non curreDt liabililies
Curretrt liabilities
Stock salc surplus and unpaid pmt'its
lnvestnent properties' purchase payable
Undenvriting creditors
Trade payables
Accrued expenses and other payables
Zakat payable
Total curretrt liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Chairman of Board of
Directors

96,952,000 93,757,501
156,r11,926 '739152 530
.1.16,000.799 44t,481,s42 qx

_/-

6
7
8
9

403,549,024 392,455,727

t0
ll
8
9
t2
l3
t4

l5
l6

t8
t1

r93,830
2,78t,735

395,734
2,188,585
2,576,t97

r5,034,407
19,281,287

296,024
?39,465
376,EEE

4,145,785
909-5',12

t3,677,264
28.880,817

42,151,775 49,025,E t5
446,000,799 441.48t,542

300,000,000
443,410
134,808

(10,725,31s)

300,000,000
334,43t
lL3,740

( I 1,706,159)
289,852,873 288,742,012

I,t95,926
s8,000,000

982,O29
58.000,000

s9, r9s,926 58,982,029

20
zt

t9
23

5l,281,136
33,J38,37,1

1,36s,53s
887,503

2,221,57 |
7,757,881

51.371,s60
33.438,374

l,365,535
887,503

2,880,980
3,813,549

chief execu er Fin

Thc accompanying notes I to 36 tbrm an integral pan ofthese llnancial statements.

r
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Al Gassim Investment Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Profit or Loss And Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 3 I December 202 I
(All amounts are in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

3l December 2020
(Restated note 33)

Revenues
Cost ofRevenues
Gross profit
Selling and distribution expcnses
General and adminisEative expenses
Provision for expected credit losses
lmpairment ofhvestment ia finance leasing contracts
Impairment of Prepayments and other rcceivables
(Loss) /or Prolit froE operatiotrs
Unrcalized gain on Invcstunents at fair value through profit or
loss
Capital gair/(loss)
Dividends income
(Reversal of) /lmpairment of invesments properties
Provision for legal settlements
Write back ofprovision for other debit balanccs
Other inoome (expense) , net
Net proliu (loss) for the year befor€ zakat
Zakat
Net profir(loss) for the yesr after zakat
Other Comprehensive locome items:
items that arc not reclassified to the statement ofprofit or
loss io subseouent Deriods lnct rfter zrkrt)
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Total comprehetrsiyc income/ (loss) for the year

Basic EarDing per share

Profit / (Loss) from operation per share for the year -SAR
Profit /(Loss) per share Frcm tolal comprehensive income for
th€ year - SAR

Chairman ofBoard of
Directors

t t,372,882 tl,65'7,910
(1,7 52,344\795,722)

Note

(1,
9 /577,160

(31,667)
(7,s46,696)

(681,488)
(2,164,489)

(300,000)

9,905,566
(t67,649)

(5,6E0,r02)
(969,855)

I3
28

7

12

23

l8 21,068

(947,r80) 087 960

2,524,933

( 103,659)
43,99'.1

(6,950,722)
(5s,000)

6',t,4t9
(r62.172\

1,357,t43

(756,638)
337,500

8J00,058

143,003
165,580

8,599,166 (t,s47,244)
(7,s09,673) (3,580,4s4)

(65,083)
1,110,86t (5,192,7E l)

29

29

0.036 (0.171)

0.037 (0. 173 ) ft7
chief exec r Financial r

The accompanying notes I to 36 form an integral part ofthese financial statements.
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t,089,793 (5,127.698)

3l December
2021

25

26
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Al Gassim Investm€nt Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of changes in Equity
For the year ended 3l December 2021
(All amounts are in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated)

Sharc
capital

StetutorY
restrve Other reserve Accumulaa€d

Losses
'I otal equity

Balance as at I January 2020 (lssued)
Prior year Adjustments (Notes 33)
Balance as at I January 2020 (Restated)
Net loss for the year (tssued)
Adjustmenls for previous years (note 33)
Net loss year 2020 (Restated)
Other comprehensive loss lbr the year
Balance as at 3 t Dec€mher 2020 (Restated)

Balance as at I January 2021 (Restated)
Net profit for the year

Traosfer to statutory reserve
Other comprehensive gain for the year
Balalc€ as at 3l December 2021

300.000.000 334.431 178.823 (5.338.699) 295,t74,555
(1.239,762\1.239.762

300,000,000 334,43 t 174,823 (6.s'7 8.461) 293,934,'193
4. r63.381 (4. 163,381
(e64.317) (964,317\

(5.t27.698) (5.t2'1,698)
(6s.083) (65.083)

300,000,000 334,43 r I 13.740 ( r 1,706,159) 288,742,0t2

300,000,000 334,431

108.979

t 13,740 (r 1,706,t s9)
1,089,793
(108,979)

248.742,012
t,089,793

2t,068 21,068
300,000,000 ,1.13,410 13,t,808 (r0,72s,J4s) 289,852,873

Chairmao ofBoard of
Directors chiefexecut r Fillancial MaIlager

- ll -

-Wp

The accompanying notes I to 36 lorm an integral part ofthese financial statements.



Al Gassim Investment Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021
(AIl amounts are in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise sta ted)

Cash Flows From Operating activities:
Net protit betbre zakat

Adjustments for nor-cash items
Depreciation ofprcperty. plant and equipment
Depreciation ol'investmcnts proptl'(ics
Gain on disposal ofproperty, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal ofinvestrnent in propefiies (tluitfil trees)
Impairment of lnvestment in finance leasing contracts
Provision no longer required (lnventory)
Provision ofexpected credit losses (Formed)
Impairment of Prepayments and other receivables
Write back ofprovision for other debit balances
Provision for Legal settlements
Unrealized gain on Investments at fair value Through profit and los:
(Reversal ot) 4mpairment of invcsmcnts propenies
Provision for employees' post employment benefits

Cbanges in Working Capital
Inventories
Trade receivables
Installment sales cottacts'debtors
Investment in finance lease conkacts
Prepayments and other receivables
Trade payables
Accrued expenses and other payables
Net Cash (Used ln)/ geuersted from operating activities

Cash flows from Fitrsncing activities:
Payment ofstock surplus sale and unpaid prolits
Net cash llows used in fioancir!g activities

N€t change in cssh aod cash equivaletrts
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning ofthe year
Casb arld cssh equivalents at end ofthe year

3l December 2020
3l December 2021 (Restared note 33

8,599,466 (t.547,244)

1,399,226
r,t11,3t3
(19s,722)

952,360
2,t61,489

(424)
681,488
300,000

(r43,003)

(r,3s7,r43)
(8,300,0s8)

249,698

t,376.357
1, t74,180

103,659

(67,4re)
969.855

55,000
(2,s24,933)

6,950.722
120,5'14

5,527,690

r02,618
(2,123,1s81

376,888
(6,8s4r13)
(r,823,622)

(6s3,776)

6,6r0,751

90,224
(402,800)

358,942

2,928.t70
(45,000)

(1s6,233)
(6,0{8,173) 9,384.054

(5,633)
( 14,733)

(3,565,3,11)

(996,922)
(6e,394)

(2,7 t7,560\
(9,633,880) 5,600.178

(70,9s8)
t95,132

3,948,364
(6',14,637 )

I 1,95 8
(5t3,392)

t24,774 2,772,293

(90,124'l (71,057)
(90,42{) (7 t,057 )

(9,599,5J0)
28,880,817

E,301.414
20,579,403

- t2-

)

Provision lbr legal settlemcnts (paid)
Employees' Erd ofservice benefits (paid)
Zakat (paid)
Net cash ,lows (used il/ generated from operating activities

Cash flows from iDyestitrg rctivities;
Proceeds from the net investment in tinance leasc contracts
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds l'rom disposal ofpropcrty, plant and equipment
Payme[ts to lflvestrnent properties' purchass payable
Net cash flows generated from investing activities

t9,281287 28.880.817



Al Gassim Investment Holding Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 3 I December 202 I
(All amounts are in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise sta ted)

Non-cash transaction:

Actuadal gain (loss)
Statutory reserve
Used ofprovision for impairmcnt oftrade rcceivablcs

Chairmatr ofBoard of
Directors

3l December 2020
3l December 2021 (Restated note 33 )

21,068

108,979
(528,888)

(65,083)

,k"

chiefexecutive

The accompanying notes I to 36 fo[m an integral part ofthese financial statements,

- t3 -
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1. General Information 
Al-Gassim Investment Holding Company is a Saudi joint stock company registered in the city of Buraidah in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under the Commercial Registry No. 1131006443 issued on Muharram 10, 1406, 
corresponding to 25 September, 1985. 
 
The Company is engaged in investing in the agricultural field, both plant and animal, and the manufacture of 
agricultural products and the import of seeds. 
 
And based on the approval of the extraordinary general assembly of the shareholders of the Company, which was held 
on 16 Jumada Al-Waal , 1438 corresponding to 13 February, 2017, the name of the Company has been changed from 
Al-Qassim Agricultural Company to Al-Gassim Investment Holding Company and it exercises its activities in managing 
its subsidiaries or participating in the management of other companies in which it shares And providing the necessary 
support for it and owning the real estate and movables necessary to carry out its activity and owning industrial property 
rights such as patents, trademarks, industrial and franchising rights and other intangible rights and exploiting them and 
leasing them to its subsidiaries or others. 
 
The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its branches as follows:  
 

 
* The latest renewal for the branch's commercial registeration ended on 15/7/1429 corresponding to 18/7/2008. 
 
2. Basis of Preparation and Measurement  

 
A. Statement of compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
approved in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and publications issued by the Saudi Organization for 
Saudi organization for certified public accountants. 
 

B. Basis of measurement 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost method, unless otherwise stated as explained 
in the significant accounting policies (Note 5). 
 

C. Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Saudi riyals, which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency. 
 
 

CR number branch name City 

1131010287 Al-Gassim Investment Holding 
Company, Saudi Dates Factory Qassim 

1131012206 Al Qassim Dairy Factory * Qassim 
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3. Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards 
There are a number of standards and amendments to standards and interpretations issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board that are considered effective in future accounting periods that the Company decided to 
apply at an early date. The most important of them are as follows: 
 
3/1 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 
The accounting policies used in preparing these financial statements are consistent with those used and disclosed in 
the annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December, 2020. 
There are new standards, amendments and interpretations that will be applied for the first time in the year 2021,but 
that do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. 
 
There are many other amendments and interpretations that were issued but did not become effective until the date of 
issuance of the Company's financial statements. The Company's board of directors believes that this will not have a 
significant impact on the Company's financial statements. The Company’s Board of Directors intends to adopt these 
amendments and interpretations, when applied. 
 
3/1/1 New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations 
Adjustments 
The following are a number of amendments to the standards issued that are effective from this year, but do not have 
a material impact on the financial statements of the Company, with the exception of what is mentioned below. 
Amendments to the standards issued and applied effective from 1 January, 2021. 

 

Amendment summary 

Apply for years 
beginning on or 

after Description 
Amendments 
to standards 

These amendments amend the specific hedge 
accounting requirements to allow hedge ac-
counting to continue for the affected hedge 
during the period of uncertainty prior to mod-
ification of hedging items or hedging instru-
ments affected by current interest rate stand-
ards as a result of standard reforms to ongoing 
interest rates. The amendments also introduce 
new disclosure requirements to IFRS 7 for 
hedging relationships that are subject to the 
exceptions introduced by the amendments to 
IFRS 9. 

1 January 2021 Interest Rate Index Fix 
- Stage 2 

IFRS 9,4,16 
and IAS 39 

This amendment extends the exemption from 
assessing whether a COVID- 19 related lease 
concession is an adjustment to payments orig-
inally due for a lease on or before 30 June 
2022 (instead of a payment due on or before 
30 June 2021). 

1 Apr 2021 Amendments to IFRS 
16 
Leasing - COVID-19 
Related rental conces-
sions 

IFRS 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Al Gassim Investment Holding Company 
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2021 
(All amounts are in Saudi Riyal unless otherwise stated) 

- 16 - 
 

 
3. Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards 

 
3/1 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 
 
3/1/1 New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations 
 

Amendment summary 
Apply for years 

beginning on or after Description 
Amendments 
to standards 

The amendments specify that the "cost of perform-
ing" a contract includes costs directly related to the 
contract. These amendments apply to contracts in 
which the Company has not fulfilled all its obliga-
tions, starting from the first period in which the Com-
pany applies that amendment. 
 

1 January 2022 contract is 
onerous 

IAS 37 

IFRS 16: The amendment removes the clarification 
of recompensation to pay for leasehold improve-
ment. 
 
IFRS 9: The amendment clarifies that when the “10 
percent” test is applied to assess whether to derecog-
nise a financial liability, an entity includes only fees 
paid or received between the entity (the borrower) 
and the lender. The amendment must be applied pro-
spectively to adjustments and exchanges that occur 
on or after the date on which the entity first applies 
the amendment. 
 
IAS 41: The amendment removes the requirement of 
IAS 41 for entities to exclude tax cash flows when 
measuring fair value. 
 
IFRS 1: The amendment provides an additional ex-
emption for a subsidiary to become applicable for the 
first time after the parent Company in relation to ac-
counting for cumulative translation differences ..  

1 January 2022 Annual Amend-
ments to Interna-
tional Financial 
Reporting Stand-
ards 2018-2020 

IFRS 16, IFRS 
9, IAS 41 and 

IFRS 1 

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of 
any item of property, plant and equipment any pro-
ceeds from the sale of items produced before that as-
set is available for use. In addition, the amendments 
also clarify the meaning of "testing whether an asset 
is working properly." 
 

1 January 2022 Property, plant 
and equipment - 
proceeds before 
intended use 

IAS 16 
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3. Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Existing Standards 

 
3/1 New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments 
 
3/1/1 New standards, amendments to standards and interpretations 

Amendment summary 

Apply for years 
beginning on or 
after Description 

Amendments 
to standards 

The amendment as a whole has been up-
dated to IFRS 3 to refer to the conceptual 
framework for the year 2018 instead of the 
1989 framework. 

1 January 2022 An indication of the 
conceptual framework 

IFRS 3 

The amendment clarifies what is the right 
to defer, that the right to defer at the end 
of the reporting period, and that this clas-
sification is not affected by the possibility 
of exercising its right to defer and that this 
is only a tradable equity instrument. com-
mon. 

1 January 2023 Insurance contracts IFRS 17 

The amendment clarifies what is meant by 
the right to defer settlement, and that the 
right to postponement must be present at 
the end of the reporting period, and that 
this classification is not affected by the en-
tity's likelihood of exercising its right to 
defer, and that only if the derivatives are 
included in a transferable obligation that is 
itself a rights instrument. Ownership and 
the terms of compliance will not affect its 
rating 

1 January 2023 Classification of 
liabilities as current or 
non-current 

IAS 1 

This amendment deals with assisting enti-
ties in determining the accounting policies 
that must be disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

1 January 2023 Disclosure of 
accounting policies 

International 
Accounting 

Standard No. 1 
and Practice 
Statement No. 
2 

These amendments to the definition of ac-
counting estimates help organizations dis-
tinguish between accounting policies and 
accounting estimates. 

1 January 2023 Modify the definition 
of an accounting 
estimate 

IAS 8 

This amendment addresses clarification re-
garding deferred tax accounting for trans-
actions such as leases and decommission-
ing obligations 

1 January 2023 Income Tax  
IAS 12 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal 
with situations in which a sale or contribu-
tion to assets is between an investor and an 
associate or joint venture. Specifically, the 
amendments provide that profits or losses 
result from losing control of a subsidiary. 

Not Applicable Sale or contribution of 
assets between the 
investor and the 
partner or joint 

venture 

Amendments to 
IFRS 10 and 
IAS 28 
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4. Significant accounting estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires the use of judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of potential assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
Judgments, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Amendments that result from 
reviewing accounting estimates are shown in the review period and future periods that are affected by these 
adjustments. 
 
4/1 The main sources of uncertainty related to accounting estimates 
The following information related to the significant areas of estimates, uncertainties, and significant judgments when 
applying accounting policies that have a material impact on the amounts included in the financial statements: 
 
4/1/1 Actuarial evaluation of employees' end of service benefits liabilities 
The present value of the liability depends on a number of factors which are determined on an actuarial basis using a 
number of assumptions. In addition, adherence to the assumptions that should be made for future results requires that 
they mainly include an increase in salaries and benefits, and the discount rate used to convert future cash flows to 
present value. Any changes in these assumptions will affect the carrying amount of the liability. Assumptions about 
them are disclosed in Note 19. 
 
4/1/2 Estimating the useful life, depreciation rate, depreciation method, and residual values of property, plant 
and equipment. 
Management reviews its estimates of the useful lives of depreciable assets, the depreciation rate, the depreciation 
method, and the residual value used in the calculation of depreciation at each reporting date based on the expected 
use of the assets. The uncertainties in these estimates relate to the maintenance and repair program in addition to 
technical obsolescence and considerations of the recoverable value of the asset that may alter the future usefulness 
of those assets. 
 
4/1/3 Zakat provision 
When estimating the current Zakat due by the Company, the management takes into consideration the applicable 
laws and decisions / provisions of the General Authority for Zakat and tax regarding some of the previous issues. 
Whether it is a liability or a tax asset, the management of the Company establishes entitlement to zakat based on the 
best estimate in line with the laws of zakat and taxes. The differences between zakat liabilities and zakat assessments 
are calculated by the Authority in the list of profits or losses for the period in which the final assessments are issued, 
unless they are anticipated. 
 
4/1/4 Impairment of non-financial assets 
In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each cash-generating asset or unit on the 
basis of expected future cash flows and uses the interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to 
assumptions about future operating results and the determination of an appropriate discount rate. 
 
4/1/5 Impariment of financial assets 
A provision for impairment of financial assets is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will 
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the agreement. The significant financial 
difficulties facing the customer, the possibility of the customer entering the stage of bankruptcy or financial 
restructuring, and the deficit or delay in payment are all indications of the existence of objective evidence of the 
decline in the value of trade receivables. For individually significant amounts, this assessment is performed on an 
individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but which are in arrears, are assessed collectively 
and a provision is recognized by taking into account the length of time in accordance with the previous recovery 
rates, together with the expected information. 
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4. Significant accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued) 

 
4/1 The main sources of uncertainty about accounting estimates (Continued) 
 
4/1/6 Inventory Verifiable Values 
Management estimates the net realizable values of the inventory, taking into account the most reliable evidence at 
the time the estimates are used, and makes a provision for slow moving and obsolete inventory. Estimates of the net 
recoverable amount of inventory are based on the most reliable evidence at the time the estimates are used. These 
estimates take into account changes in demand for goods, technological changes, quality matters and fluctuations in 
prices. Accordingly, the Company studies these factors and takes them into account to calculate the provision for 
slow-moving and damaged inventory. 
 
4/1/7 fair value measurement 
Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (when active market 
prices are not available). This includes making estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants 
price the instrument. Management bases its assumption on inputs that are as observable as possible but this is not 
always available. In that case, management uses the best available information. Estimated fair values may differ 
from the actual prices that would be achieved in a commercial transaction at the reporting date. 
 

4/1/8 Lease Contracts - Estimating the additional borrowing rate 
The Company cannot easily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease agreement, so it uses the incremental 
borrowing rate to measure the lease liability, and the additional borrowing rate is the interest rate that the Company 
has to pay to borrow, over a similar period and with a similar collateral, and the funds needed to obtain an asset of 
similar value. The right to use in a similar economic environment, therefore, the additional borrowing rate is what 
the Company must pay, which requires an estimate when observable rates are not available or when they need to be 
modified to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease contract, and the Company estimates the additional 
borrowing rate using observable inputs ( Such as market interest rates) when available. 
 

5. Significant accounting policies  
 
Classifying assets and liabilities as current and non-current 
 
The Company shows its assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on its current / non-current classification. 
Assets are current when: 
- It is expected that it will be liquidated or there is an intention to sell it or be depleted during the normal operational 

business cycle, 
- Maintaining it mainly for trading purposes, 
- It is expected to be sold during the twelve months following the disclosed financial period. 
- In the form of cash and cash equivalents, unless there are no restrictions on replacing it or using it to pay any 

liabilities for a period of not less than twelve months after the disclosed financial period. 
 

All other assets are classified as non-current assets. 
 
Liabilities are current when: 
- It is expected to be repaid during the normal operating cycle, 
- Maintaining it mainly for trading purposes, 
- Due to be paid during the twelve months following the disclosed financial period, 
- The absence of an unconditional right to postpone the payment of the obligation for a period of not less than twelve 

months after the disclosed financial period. 
 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current liabilities. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Property, plant and equipment  
Property, plant and equipment are recognized initially at acquisition cost, including any other direct costs of bringing 
the assets to the site and in the condition necessary to enable them to operate in the manner intended by the management 
of the Company. These assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated im-
pairment losses, if any. 
 
When the major components of items of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted 
for as separate items of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the future economic benefits to the Company, and 
they can be measured reliably. 
 
Finance costs related to loans to finance the creation of qualifying assets are capitalized during the period necessary to 
complete and prepare the assets for their intended purpose. 
 
Depreciation is charged to the statement of profit or loss and calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of each item of property, plant and equipment. The following are the estimated useful lives of the assets 
to be depreciated: 
 

Asset Categories Percentage  
Buildings and construction 3-10% 
The machines and the equipments 7.5-25% 
Vichels  25% 
Irrigation network 2.5-20% 
Furniture and fixtures  10-25% 
Agricultural machinery 7.5-10% 
fruitful trees  2.5% 

 
Non-current assets are reviewed if there are any losses as a result of decline in their value whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss (if any) is recognized 
for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable value is 
the fair value of the asset after deducting the costs of selling and the residual value for use, whichever is higher. 
 
Capital work-in-progress at the end of the period includes some assets that have been acquired but are not ready for 
use for which they are intended. These assets are transferred to the relevant asset classes and are depreciated when 
they are ready for use. 
 
The depreciation method, the residual value estimates and the useful lives of the assets are reviewed at the end of 
each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if required. 
 
The gain or loss resulting from disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined by the difference between 
the proceeds of disposal and the net book value of the assets and recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 
Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 
 
Fruit trees 
International Accounting Standard 16, “Property, plant and equipment” defines fruit trees as: 

- It is used in the production or supply of agricultural products 
- It is expected to bear fruit more than once during the period. 
- Other than occasional scrap sales, there is a remote possibility of selling them as agricultural products. 

 
The initial recognition of fruit trees is made at cost after deducting the accumulated depreciation and the accumulated 
losses of depreciation in value, if any. 
Cost includes the amounts incurred by the Company to acquire the asset and includes the costs of raw materials, labor 
and all other direct costs associated with placing the assets in the condition that enables it to achieve the purpose for 
which it was purchased. 
Any profits or losses resulting from the exclusion of fruit trees (calculated on the basis of the difference between the 
net sales proceeds and the book value of plants) are recognized in the other income item in the list of profits and 
losses in the period in which they are excluded. 
 
Investment  properties 
Investment in properties consist of lands and buildings owned by the Company. Investment in properties are initially 
recognized and recorded at cost including the costs of executing the transaction. Transaction execution costs include 
professional fees and commissions until the investment reaches the state that makes it fit for its intended purpose. A 
cost model was used. 
 
Subsequent recognition of real estate investments is as follows: 
 
Land at cost 
The subsequent recognition of those lands at cost and in the event that some indications and indications of the 
possibility of a decrease in the value of the investments appear at the date of the non-consolidated financial 
statements, then the book value of the value of the lands shall be reduced to its recoverable value, and the resulting 
decline losses shall be immediately included in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Real estate 
Real estate leased to others is depreciated at a rate of 3-10% in the straight-line method, and depreciation is charged 
to the profit or loss statement, and in the event that some indications and indications of a possible decrease in the 
value of investments occur on the date of the financial statements, the book value of the real estate value is reduced 
to its recoverable value and losses The resulting decrease is immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Investment in properties are eliminated either by sale or by termination of their use altogether as no future benefits 
are expected from disposal. Profits or losses arising from the disposal or disposal of real estate investments are 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of disposal or sale. 
 
Gains or losses arising from the sale of real estate investments are determined as the difference between the net sale 
proceeds or the net realizable value of the assets received and the book value of the investment property at that date. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 
Right-of-use assets and contracts 
Leases are recognized as right-to-use assets with their obligations on the date the leased assets are made available for 
use by the Company. Each rental payment is apportioned between commitment costs and financing costs. The 
financing cost is recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income and income over the term of the lease 
contract. Right-of-use assets are depreciated according to the straight-line method over the useful life of the asset or 
the lease term, whichever is less. 
 
Right-to-use assets are measured initially at cost, which includes the following: 

- The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, 
- Any rent payments made on or before the lease commencement date minus any rent incentives received, any 

initial direct costs, 
- Restoration costs, if any. 

 
Lease obligations, where applicable, include the net present value of: 

- Fixed payments (including fixed payments in substance) minus any lease incentives receivable, Variable 
rental payments that are based on an index or price, 

- Amounts expected to be paid by the tenant under the residual value guarantees, 
- The price of exercising the call option if the lessee is reasonably certain that he will exercise the option, 
- The amounts of fines paid to terminate the contract, if the lease term reflects the tenant’s exercise of this 

option. 
 
Short term lease contracts 
Short-term leases are leases with a duration of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are items that do not meet the 
Company's capitalization limits and are considered insignificant to the Company's statement of financial position as 
a whole. Payments of short-term leases and lease contracts for low-value assets are recognized in accordance with 
the straight-line method in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 
Variable rental payments 
Some lease contracts include variable payments related to the use / performance of the leased asset. These payments 
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss other comprehensive income and income. 
 
Extension and termination options 
When determining the term of the lease contract, the management takes into account all the facts and circumstances 
that would create an economic incentive to encourage the exercise of the option of extension or not to exercise the 
option of termination. Extension options (or periods following an option to terminate) are not included in the lease 
term unless the extension (or non-termination) of the lease is reasonably certain. The Company shall assess, at the 
commencement of the lease, whether it is reasonably certain that the extension options will be exercised. The 
Company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise options if there is a significant event or significant 
change in the controlled conditions. 
 
Inventory 
Inventory are evalueting at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower, with the exception of inventories of raw 
materials and spare parts, which are recorded at cost, and the cost is determined on the basis of weighted average. 
The cost of finished and in-progress goods includes the cost of raw materials, labor and industrial overheads that 
contribute to converting raw materials into a finished product. The net recoverable value consists of the estimated 
selling price during the normal course of business, after deducting the estimated costs of making the sale. 
 
The Company reviews the carrying value of the inventory on a regular basis, and when needed, the inventory is 
reduced to the net recoverable value or an obsolescence provision is created if there is any change in the pattern of 
use or the physical shape of the relevant inventory. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Trade receivables and other  
Initial recognition of trade receivables and other at fair value and measured in the subsequent period at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method less any provisions for doubtful debts. A provision for doubtful debts is 
established based on the Company's best estimates of expected credit losses on trade receivables. 
 
The Expected Credit Loss measurement is an indication of the probability of default or the loss at default rate (that 
is, the size of the loss if there is a default) and exposure to the risk of default. 
 
The assessment of probability of default and hypothetical loss is based on historical data modified by forward-looking 
information. 
 
Non-current assets are held for sale 
Non-current assets held for sale are non-current assets whose book value is expected to be recovered mainly from a 
sale transaction and not from continuing to be used.These assets are measured at book value or fair value minus 
selling costs, whichever is less, and they are classified within current assets. 
 
In the event of a decline in the value of those assets, the book value is adjusted for the value of this decrease and is 
included in the statement of profit or loss, and the refund of the decline losses is recognized in the period in which it 
occurred, not exceeding the previous book value that was reduced unless the impairment loss of the asset is 
recognized in Previous years. 
 
Financial instruments 
 
Financial instruments include financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognition when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument. On initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs related to financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at fair value through profit 
or loss and are recorded as an expense from the statement of profit or loss and comperhensive income, and in the case 
of financial assets and liabilities not included in fair value through profit or loss, their fair value is less transaction 
costs directly related to the acquisition of Financial assets and liabilities or their issuers are the amount of initial 
recognition. 
 
Classification of financial assets 
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: 
 
- Financial assets at amortized cost. 
- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
These classifications are based on the Company's business model for managing financial assets and cash flow 
characteristics. At the date of the current financial statements, the Company only maintains financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets at amortized cost 
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost, which is not measured at Fair Value Throgh Profit and loss if the 
following two conditions are met: 

- The financial asset is held in the business model and is intended to collect contractual cash flows, and 
- The contractual terms of the financial asset arise on specific dates for cash flows representing payments of 

the principal amount and interest on the principal outstanding amount. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 

 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
 
A) Debt instruments 
Debt instruments that are measured at Fair Value Throgh Profit and loss and which have not been designated as Fair 
Value Throgh Profit and loss are measured when the following conditions are met: 
The financial asset is kept in the business model and is intended to collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial 
assets. 
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows representing payments of the 

principal amount and interest on the principal outstanding amount. 
 
B) Equity instruments 
They are tools that meet the definition of equity from the source's point of view, that is, tools that do not contain a 
contractual obligation to pay, and that prove the existence of a residual benefit from the net assets of the source. 
 
Subsequently, the Company measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, except if the 
Company’s director, upon initial recognition and irrevocably, chooses to classify an equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income. 
 
The Company's policy is to classify equity investments at Fair Value Throgh Profit and loss when those investments 
are held for purposes other than trading. When this option is used, fair value gains or losses are recognized through 
other comprehensive income which are not subsequently reclassified to the statement of profit and loss, even on 
disposal. Impairment losses are not disclosed separately from other changes in fair value. Dividends are still 
recognized when they represent a return on those investments in the comprehensive income statement when there is 
an inventory for the Company to receive those payments. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
All other financial assets are classified as measured at Fair Value Throgh Profit and loss. 
 
In addition, upon initial recognition, the Company may choose to classify a financial asset at fair value through profit 
or loss if it does not meet the requirements for its classification as a financial instrument at amortized cost or at 
FVOCI, if this results in a materially canceling or diminishing of the financial asset. Accounting compatibility that 
may arise. 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified after initial recognition, except for the period after the Company changes its 
business model for managing financial assets. 
 
Business Model Evaluation 
The Company evaluation the objective of the business model in which the asset is being held because that is the best 
way to manage the business this information is presented to the management. The information taken into 
consideration includes: 
 
Policies and objectives set and applying those policies in practice. In particular, the management strategy focuses on 
achieving contracted revenues, maintaining a certain profit rate, matching the term of these financial assets with the 
duration of the financial liabilities that finance those assets or achieving cash flows through the sale of assets; 
- How is the performance of the portfolio evaluated and reported to the Company's managers; 
- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within the business 

model) and how these risks are managed; 
- How to compensate the directors, that is, if the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or 

the contractual cash flows collected; 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Business Model Evaluation 
The frequency, volume and timing of sales in previous periods, the reasons for those sales and expectations about 
future sales activity. However, these sales cannot be taken into account on their own, but rather as part of the overall 
assessment of how the Company will achieve the Company's objectives for managing financial assets and how cash 
flows are achieved. 
 
Financial assets held for trading, if any, and whose performance is evaluated on the basis of fair value are measured 
and included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss because they are not held to collect contractual 
cash flows nor are they held to collect contractual cash flows and sell the Financial assets. 
 
The Evaluation of the business model is based on predictions that are reasonably expected, without taking into 
account the “worst case” or “stress situation” scenarios. If cash flows are achieved after initial recognition differently 
from the original Company's expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial 
assets held within that business model, but rather uses this information to move forward when evaluating a newly 
formed or newly purchased financial asset. 
 
Evaluate whether the contractual cash flows are only payments of principal and interest 
For the purposes of this evaluation, the “principal amount” represents the carrying value of the financial assets at the 
date of initial recognition. As for "interest", it represents compensation against the time value of money and against 
other credit risks related to the principal amount outstanding during a period, or other basic lending costs (such as 
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 
 
Evaluate whether the contractual cash flows are only payments of principal and interest (Continued)  
When assessing whether the contractual cash flows represent only payments of principal and interest, the firm takes 
into account the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes whether the financial asset contains a contractual 
clause that can change the timing or amount of cash flows that do not meet this condition. 
 
To make this evaluation, the Company takes into consideration the following: 
- Possible events that change the amount and timing of cash flows; 
- Leveraged properties; 
- Advance payment and terms of extension; 
- Conditions that limit the firm's claim to cash flows from specified assets (for example, asset arrangements without 

recourse); 
Properties that adjust the offer against the time value of money, such as price readjustment. 
 
Impairment of financial assets (expected credit losses) 
The Company recognizes a provision for expected credit losses (if any and is significant). 
 
Significant increase in credit risk 
To determine whether the default risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportive relevant information that is available without undue 
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Company's 
previous experience and credit evaluation, including the assessment of the change in the likelihood of default in 
payment as at the date of the financial statements and the probability of default at the time of the initial recognition 
of the exposure. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Measuring expected credit losses 
Expected credit loss (ECL) is an estimate of the likely probability of credit loss. It is measured as follows: 
 
Financial assets that are not credit impaired at the date of the financial statements, the present value of all cash 
shortages (i.e. the difference between the cash flows owed to the Company according to the contract and the cash 
flows the Company expects to receive); 
Financial assets whose credit value has decreased at the reporting date are measured as the difference between the 
total book value and the present value of the estimated future cash flows. 
 
Low credit level of financial assets 
At each financial position date, the Company assesses whether financial assets recorded at amortized cost have a low 
credit level. A financial asset is considered to have a low level of credit when one or more events that have a 
significant effect on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Examples indicating that a 
financial asset has a low level of credit are the following observable data: 
- Significant financial difficulty faced by the borrower or exporter; 
- Breach of contract such as default or overdue; 
-  Rescheduling the loan or advance by the borrower or the issuer according to conditions that are not appropriate 

for the Company; 
- the possibility of the borrower entering bankruptcy or financial restructuring; 
- The disappearance of an active market for that financial instrument due to financial difficulties. 
 
Presentation of the allowance for expected credit losses 
The expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at amortized cost is presented in the statement of financial 
position as a deduction from the total carrying amount of the assets. 
 
Financial liabilities 
The Company classifies financial liabilities at amortized cost unless it has liabilities classified at fair value through 
profit or loss. 
 
A financial liability is derecognised when it is discharged from the obligation under the obligation, canceled or 
expires. When an existing financial obligation is replaced by another one from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of the existing liabilities are modified substantially, such an exchange or amendment is 
treated as exclusion of the original obligation and recognition of a new liability and the difference is recognized in 
the amounts recognized in Statement of comprehensive income. 
 
Financial liabilities and equity. 
 
Classification as debt or equity 
Debt and equity instruments are classified as financial liabilities or equity in line with the substance of the contractual 
arrangements and the definitions of a financial commitment and an equity instrument. 
 
Equity tools 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the Company's assets after deducting all of 
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded with the amounts received after deducting 
direct issuance expenses. 
 
The repurchase of the Company's equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly from the equity. No gain or 
loss is recognized in the income statement when buying, selling, issuing, or canceling the Company's equity 
instruments. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, and in the case of loans and advances, they are shown at the 
amounts received, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at fair value 
through profit or loss. 
 
De-recognition of financial liabilities 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when the Company's obligations are fulfilled, canceled or 
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the amount paid and 
payable is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Offsetting financial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and are recorded net of the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally binding right to measure the amounts recognized and when the Company intends to pay on a net basis or to 
realize the asset and settle the obligation simultaneously. Likewise, the income and expense items of those assets and 
liabilities are also offset and the net amount is included in the financial statements. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less (if any) that are available to the Company without any restrictions and that 
are subject to immaterial risks of changes in value. 
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets are reviewed if there are any losses as a result of impairment in their value whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the book value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss (if any) is 
recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
value is the fair value of the asset after deducting the costs of selling and the residual value for use, whichever is 
higher. Assets are grouped to the lowest level where there are independently determinable cash flows. Non-financial 
assets other than financial assets and those that are impaired in value are reviewed for the possibility of reversing the 
decline in value at each balance sheet date. When the impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount 
of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable value, but the increased 
carrying amount must not exceed the carrying amount that could have been determined, which if it had been 
determined would not be Recording any impairment loss in the value of the asset or cash generating unit in previous 
years. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Dividends 
Dividends are recorded in the financial statements in the period in which approved. 
 
Employees benefits 
 
Short-term employees benefits 
Wages and salaries obligations, including non-cash benefits, accrued vacations, airline tickets and other allowances 
expected to be paid in full within the twelve months after the end of the period during which employees provide the 
related service are recognized as current liabilities on the balance sheet. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Long-term employees benefits 
Other long-term employee benefit obligations (including extended service leave and annual leave that are expected 
to be settled in full within twelve months after the end of the period during which employees provide the related 
service) are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be paid for services rendered by 
employees up to the end of the period. The financial period reported using the projected unit credit method, is 
recorded as a non-current liability. It takes into account the levels of wages, expected future salaries, employee 
resignations, rates of workforce reduction, and periods of service. A re-measurement is recognized as a result of 
experience-based adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 
The liabilities are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet unless the Company has an unconditional right 
to delay payment for a period of at least 12 months after the disclosed financial period, regardless of the actual 
payment date. 
 
Employee end of service benefits 
End of service compensation for Company employees shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the labor 
law in force in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Liabilities related to the employee end service benefit obligation 
recognized in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the employee end service benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The employee end service benefit obligation is calculated annually by 
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 
 
The net financing cost is calculated using the discount rate on the net balance of the employee end of service benefits 
obligation and the cost is included in the employee's benefit expense in the statement of profit or loss. 
 
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in the 
period in which they occur are recognized directly in other comprehensive income. 
 
Changes in the present value commitment to employee end of service benefits arising from modifications or 
reductions in the plan are recognized directly in the statement of profit and loss as previous service costs. 
 
End of Service benefits 
Termination of employment benefit liability is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events that can be estimated reliably. The obligation is measured using the best estimate 
of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, and if the effect of the time value of money is of 
relative importance, it is measured by discounting the expected future cash flows at a discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to that obligation. The reduction in the discount 
is recognized as a financing cost in the period in which it arises. 
 
Provisions 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of past events, it appears that the Company has a present legal or contractual 
obligation the amount of which can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the date of each financial position and adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is of relative importance, it is measured by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at a discount rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks associated with 
that commitment. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time as a financing burden. 
 
Contingent  liabilities 
All contingent liabilities arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events that are not fully controlled by the Company, or all current 
liabilities arising from previous events but are not established for the following reasons: (1) There is no possibility 
that an outflow of resources embedded in the economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or  
(2) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability; Therefore, all of them must be 
evaluated at each statement of financial position date and disclosed in the Company's financial statements as a 
potential liability. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Revenues 
Revenue is recognized when control of an asset is transferred, either over time or at a specific time. Control of an 
asset is known as the ability to direct the use and effect of all benefits related to that asset. 
 
Rental income from lease contracts 
Rental income arising from lease contracts is recognized net of discount, in accordance with the terms of the lease 
contracts over the lease term using the straight-line method, unless there is another basic alternative that is more 
representative of the pattern under which the benefits derived from the leased asset are reduced. 
 
Selling goods or services 
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of required goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects it to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is 
recognized when the following steps are met: 
  
1- Determine the sales contract concluded with the customer. This contract does not need to be in writing. 
2- Existence of performance obligation. 
3- Determine the transaction price. 
4- Distribution of the transaction price over the performance obligation. 
5- Revenue recognition upon fulfillment of performance obligations. 
When assessing these steps, management takes the following into account: 
- The consent of both parties (the buyer and the seller) to the sale with the transfer of each party’s rights to these 

goods and services under the sale. The terms of payment should also be studied to ensure that the contract has a 
commercial basis and that it is likely that the consideration for the sale of these goods and services will be 
charged. 

Determining independent goods or services agreed upon under the contract. These independent goods and services 
are referred to as a performance obligation. When studying whether these goods and services are independent, the 
management evaluates whether these goods or services can provide a benefit in themselves and that the Company's 
promise to transfer these goods and services to the customer has been determined separately, and all sales of the 
Company are considered independent. 
The financial compensation expected to be due to the Company in return for transporting these goods and services. 
All sales of the Company have a fixed fee. 
- Distribution of the transaction price to the goods or services under the contract. 
- Fulfill the performance obligation. 
 
Interest and dividends 
Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends are 
recognized at the time the right to receive payments is established. 
 
Expenses 
 
Cost of revenue 
All expenses are recognized on an accrual basis. It recognizes operating costs on a historical cost basis. This item 
includes costs of raw materials, direct labor, and other associated indirect costs. 
 
Selling and distribution expenses 
This item includes any costs incurred to conduct or facilitate all of the Company's selling activities. 
 
General and administrative expenses 
This item relates to expenditures that are not directly related to the production or sale of any goods or services. 
Indirect expenses are apportioned among the cost of revenues, selling and distribution expenses, and general and 
administrative expenses when necessary, on a consistent basis. 
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5. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 
 
Zakat 
In accordance with the regulations of the General Authority for Zakat and Tax (the “Authority”), the Company is 
subject to Zakat. The zakat provision for the Company is recognized and charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
Additional zakat liabilities, if any, relating to prior year assessments are computed by the Authority in the period in 
which the final assessments are issued. 
 
The Company is primarily eligible to pay zakat only. Whereas, reversing the timing differences, if any, is not expected 
to have any material impact on the amount of Zakat in the foreseeable future, and therefore no deferred tax liability 
or asset has been recognized in these financial statements. 
 
Value added tax 
The company records the expenses and revenues after deducting the value-added tax, except if they are not 
refundable, and in this case they are recorded in the cost of the asset or the expense. The net recoverable or due tax 
is recognized in the debit or credit balances in the statement of financial position. 
 
Segments reporting 
The sector alone is identifiable in the Company as this unit is engaged in either providing products or services 
(business sector), or providing products or services within a specific economic environment (geographical sector), 
provided that each sector has its own risks and benefits different from the risks and benefits of other sectors. 
(Geographical sector) represents the local revenues during the period from the Company's revenues. All the assets 
and liabilities of the Company are located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 
 
(Operating Segment) The Company does not have any of the quantitative limits referred to in IFRS 8 “Operating 
Sectors”. Accordingly, the operating segment information has not been disclosed in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 
Transactions and balances in foreign currencies 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals using the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities recorded in foreign currencies as at the date of the balance sheet are 
converted into Saudi riyals according to the exchange rates prevailing on that date. Non-monetary items carried at 
outstanding fair value are translated into exotic currencies at the rates prevailing on the date on which the fair value 
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
retranslated. Gains or losses arising from repayments or foreign exchange transfers are included in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
 
Borrowing Cost 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the purchase, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets 
that inevitably require a period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalized to the costs of those 
assets until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are recognized as 
an expense in the period in which they are incurred and included under 'Finance cost'. Investment income earned on 
the temporary investment of specific loans until it is spent on qualifying assets is deducted from borrowing costs 
eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs are the costs of interest and other costs that a Company incurs in 
connection with the process of borrowing funds. 
 
Earnings per share 
The Company displays the basic and diluted earnings per share (if any) per common share. Basic earnings per share 
from net profit or loss is calculated by dividing the profit or loss of the Company's ordinary shareholders by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the number of ordinary shares 
repurchased or issued during the period. Reduced earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the profit or loss of 
the ordinary shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period 
for the effects of all the reduced ordinary shares that are likely to be issued.
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

 
*The land clause includes a plot of land in Madinah Monawarah with a value of SR 13,223,238 owned by the Company registered in the name of Al-Rajhi Bank as a guarantee 
of facilities obtained by the Company during the previous years, and the Company has paid all its obligations to Al-Rajhi Bank and the title deed is still registered in the name 
of Al-Rajhi Bank and the procedures for re-transfer Ownership have not been completed. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Land* Building 
Plant and 
equipment Vehicles 

irrigation 
network 

Furniture and 
fixtures 

Agricultural 
machinery 

fruitful 
trees 

Total 31 
December 

2021 

Total 31 
December 

2020(Restated) 
Cost:           
Balance on 1 January 
2021 (Restated note 33) 18,887,172 18,411,982 18,656,242 1,112,050 2,016,997 2,703,867 282,350 2,880,000 64,950,660 64,704,882 

Additions  -- 30,000 --  -- 40,958 -- -- 70,958 674,637 
Disposals  -- -- -- )602,550( -- -- )125,000( -- )727,550( )428,859( 
Balance at 31 
December 2021 18,887,172 18,441,982 18,656,242 509,500 2,016,997 2,744,825 157,350 2,880,000 64,294,068 64,950,660 

           
Accumulated Depreciation           
Balance on 1 January 
2021(Restated note 33) 

-- 11,416,687 16,727,721 1,112,039 1,732,051 2,245,469 282,344 1,914,180 35,430,491 34,367,375 

Depreciation for the 
year -- 688,521 492,476  51,756 94,473 -- 72,000 1,399,226 1,376,357 

Disposals  -- -- -- )602,543( -- -- )124,997( -- )727,540( )313,241( 
Balance as at 31 
December 2021 -- 12,105,208 17,220,197 509, 1,783,807 2,339,942 157,347 1,986,180 36,102,177 35,430,491 
Net book value as at 31 
December 2021 18,887,172  6,336,774  1,436,045  4  233,190 404,883 3 893,820  28,191,891  - 
Net book value as at 31 
December 2020(Restated) 18,887,172  6,995,295  1,928,521  11  284,946 458,398 6 965,820  - 29,520,169  
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

    
Depreciation has been charged to the statement of profit  profit 
 or loss as follows:    

 31 December 2021  31 December 
2020 (Restated) 

Cost of revenues (Note 25) 293,093   1274,65  
General and administrative expenses (Note 27)  1,106,133  1,101,706 
 1,399,226  1,376,357 
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7. Investment properties  
 As at 31 December 2021 "Al-Ofuq Land Project" amounted to SR 133,892,708 ( 31 December, 2020 SR 
126,378,000) according to the evaluation process carried out by the real estate evaluator, "Mansour Saleh Al-Saleem 
Real Estate Appraisal Office", an independent evaluator approved by the Saudi Authority for Accredited Valuers. 
Under license No. 1210000477. Impairment losses in the value of investment properties until the year ended 31 
December, 2021, amounted to SR 44,821,558. 
 
 As at 31 December 2021 "land located in the center of Shri" amounted to SR 75,807,383 (31 December, 2020: SR 
76,373,706) according to the evaluation process carried outto determine wethere there is decrease in fair value  by 
the real estate evaluator, "Mansour Saleh Al-Saleem Real Estate Appraisal Office", an independent evaluator 
approved by the Saudi Authority for Accredited Valuers. Under license No. 1210000477 the fair value of the value 
of investment properties until the year ended 31 December, 2021, amounted to SR 90,480,000 therefore the is no 
impariement in value of investment properties as of 31 December 2021. 
 
 As at 31 December, 2021" Al Mulida Land" amounted to SR 14,382,000 (31 December, 2020: SR 15,160,000).The 
investment was evaluated at cost according to the evaluation process carried out by the real estate appraiser, "Mansour 
Saleh Al-Saleem Real Estate Appraisal Office", an independent evaluator accredited by the Saudi Authority for 
Accredited Valuers with License No. 1210000477., Impairment losses in the value of investment propertiy for the 
year ended  31 December 2021 amounted to SR 899,266. 
 
The list of investment properties are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cost Shri Project Al Ofuq  Al Mulida Project Total 
Balance as at 1 January, 2021  80,652,939 178,714,266 26,499,795 285,867,000 
Disposals -- -- (1,232,000) (1,232,000) 
Balance at 31December 2021 80,652,939 178,714,266 25,267,795 284,635,000 
     
Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment     

Balance on 1 January, 2021 4,279,233 -- 9,655,179 13,934,412 
Impairment losses  -- 52,336,266 1,684,616 54,020,882 
Net balance on January 1, 2021 
after impairment losses  in in-
vestment properties 
 

4,279,233 52,336,266 11,339,795 67,955,294 

Charged for the year 566,323 -- 610,990 1,177,313 
Disposal -- -- )279,640(  (279,640) 
Reversal of Impairment losses   )7,514,708(  )785,350(  )8,300,058(  
Balance at 31 December 2021 4,845,556 44,821,558 10,885,795 60,552,909 
     
Net book value     
As at  31 December  2021  75,807,383 133,892,708 14,382,000 224,082,091 
As at 31  December 2020 76,373,706 126,378,000 15,160,000 217,911,706 
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8. Installment sales contracts’debtors 
The leasing contract of the Company’s project in the Shri area of the Al Watania Poultry Company included the sale 
of some property, machinery and equipment in the amount of 25 million Saudi riyals paid in annual installments (25 
installments starting from 1 March, 2016) with the annual rent value of one million Saudi riyals. SR 12,085,322 as 
on 31 December, 2021 (31 December, 2020, SR12,462,210), and they are as follows: 
 

 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Current portion 395,734  376,888 
Non – Current portion 11,689,588  12,085,322 
 12,085,322  12,462,210 
 
9. Investment in finance lease contracts 
The Company entered into a lease agreement with the Al Watania Poultry Company, by leasing its two projects in 
the Shri area (the agricultural project and the poultry project) for a period of 25 years, starting from 1 March, 2016. 
The Company’s management decided to divide the lease contract between an operating lease of land and palm trees 
and a finance lease contract for buildings and equipment. 
 
The balance of the indebtedness of the finance lease contracts amounted to a total amount of SR 141,774,039 as on 
31 December, 2021 (31 December, 2020: SR 137,084,315), and it is as follows: 

 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Investment in financial lease contracts 220,000,000  220,000,000 
Unearned revenue (76,061,472)  )82,915,685(  
Provision for Investment in financial leasing contracts non- current )2,164,489(   -- 
Investment in finance lease contracts 141,774,039  137,084,315 
 

 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Non – Current portion 139,585,454  132,938,530 
Current portion 2,188,585  4,145,785 
 141,774,039  137,084,315 
 

 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Non-Current portion 139,585,454  132,938,530 
    
Current portion    
Current portion 4,353,074  4,145,785 
Provision for Investment in financial lease contracts non- current )2,164,489(   -- 
Current portion 2,188,585  4,145,785 
Total 141,774,039  137,084,315 
 

 
 
 

 
 

31, December 2021  
Net investment  Unrealized revenue  Total investment  

4,353,074  6,646,926   11,000,000 First year 
4,570,727  6,429,273   11,000,000 Second Year 
4,799,264  6,200,736   11,000,000 Third Year 
5,039,227  5,960,773   11,000,000 Fourth year 

125,176,236  50,823,764  176,000,000 Fifth year and beyond  
143,938,528  76,061,472  220,000,000  
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9. Net investment in financial leasing contracts (Continued) 

 
Provision for Investment in financial leasing contracts: 

 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Balance at Beging of the year --  -- 
Formed during the year  2,164,489  -- 
Balance at the end of the year  2,164,489  -- 
 

10. Inventories 
  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 

Spare parts  3,660,035  3,660,445 
Packing and warping material  750,088  851,603 
Other materials  47,158  47,851 
Total  14,457,28   4,559,899 
Provision for obsolescence and slow movement   (4,263,451)  )4,263,875(  
  0193,83   296,024 

 
Movement in provision for obsolete inventory 

 
 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 

Balance at Beging of the year  4,263,875  4,331,294 
Provision No longer  required  (424)  )67,419(  
Balance at the end of the year  4,263,451  4,263,875 
 

11. Trade Receivables 
 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Trade Receivables - Local customers   4,266,451   2,071,581 
Provision of expected credit losses    (1,484,716)  (1,332,116) 
   2,781,735  739,465 

 
Movement in the Provision of expected credit losses (is as follows: 
 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Balance at Beging of the year    1,332,116   362,261 
Formed durning the year   681,488  969,855 
Used durning the year    (528,888)   
Balance at the end of the year   1,484,716  1,332,116 

31, December 2020  
Net investment  Unrealized revenue  Total investment  

4,145,785   6,854,215   11,000,000 First year 
4,353,073   6,646,927    11,000,000 Second Year 
4,570,727   6,429,273    11,000,000 Third Year 
4,799,264   6,200,736    11,000,000 Fourth year 

119,215,466   56,784, 453   176,000,000 Fifth year and beyond  
137,084,315  82,915,685  220,000,000  
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12. Prepayments and Other Receivable  

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Advances to suppliers  783,400  725,696 
Refundable Insurance    13,000   13,000 
Staff loans  57,804  68,036 
Dividends receivables   75,000   37,500 
Value added tax receivables   1,771,176   66,640 
Advance payments  209,955  160,110 
Other  682,702  698,433 
Total  3,593,037  1,769,415 
Impairment of Prepayments and other receivables   (1,016,840)  )859,843(  
  2,576,197  909,572 

 
The following is a summary of the movement in the Impairment of Prepayments and other receivables as 
follows: 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Balance at Beging of the year   859,843  859,843 
Formed durning the year  300,000  -- 
Write back of provision for other debit balances  (143,003)   
Balance at the end of the year   1,016,840  859,843 
 

13. Investments at fair value through profit or loss 
31 December 2020 31 December 2021   

Fair value Cost Fair value Cost 
% of 

ownership 
 

1,860,001 1,238,400 1,959,443 1,238,400 4.19% 
The National seed and Agricultural Services 
CO.Buthor 

9,122,133 600,000 9,342,214 600,000 8.30% United Dairy Farms Company 

1,074,787 750,000 1,179,875 750,000 0.75% Saudi Industries Development Company 

330,028 120,900 362,951 120,900 1.43% 
Al-Bateen Agricultural Cooperative Associa-
tion 

1,290,315 1,800,000 2,189,924 1,800,000 1.20% Wasatah Capital  

13,677,264 4,509,300 15,034,407 4,509,300   

 
* These investments are represented in equity instruments in companies not listed in the financial market in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. They were evaluated as on 31 December, 2021 by the evaluator "Value Hub for Business 
valuation and Partners Co." independent evaluator accredited by the Saudi Authority for Accredited Valuers, License 
No. 3912000018. 
 
* The fair value of investments according to the evaluator's report amounted to SR 15,034,407 (2020: SR 13,677,264), 
which resulted in unrealized profits that were charged to the statement of profit or loss amounted to SR 1,357,143 
(2020: SR 2,524,933), 
 
 
* The disclosures related to fair value and valuation methods are set out in (note 32). 
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14. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Cash at banks  19,281,287   28,880,817 
 

15. Share Capital 
The Company’s issued and paid capital is SR 300 million divided into 30 million shares issued and paid  with a par 
value of SR 10 per share. 
 

16. Statutory Reserve 
In accordance with its By-laws and the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company is 
required to transfer 10% of its net profit for the year to a statutory reserve until such reserve equals 30% of its share 
capital. This Statutory Reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders.  

 
17. Deferred revenue 
The Company received on 23 Shawwal 1441 corresponding to 15 June 2020 a letter issued by the Ministry of 
Environment, Water and Agriculture No. 1441/1057/547885 dated 22 Shawwal 1441 corresponding to 14 June 2020 
indicating the issuance of the Royal Decree No. 56822 on 18/10/1441 to approve the ownership of a AlGassim 
Invesment Holding Company the specified area (74,043,400 square meters) seventy-four million and forty-three 
thousand and four hundred square meters of the land delivered to it, based on Royal Order No. 1305 on 24/6/1409, 
which the Company has previously established as a restricted government grant (deferred revenue) in the amount of 
only SR 58,000,000 fifty-eight million Saudi riyals with an area (116,000,000 square meters) registered in the books, 
and the revenues of government grants as  have not been recognized until the legal procedures for transferring 
ownership are completed in the name of the Company. 
 

18. Employees’ post employment benefits 
 
1/18 General description 
Employee benefits are calculated on the basis of the labor system in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia for all employees 
who complete the eligible service period and are entitled to receive amounts mentioned under the labor law for each 
year / period of this service. 
The annual provision is based on the actuarial valuation. The valuation was performed as on 31 December, 2021, and 
31 December, 2020 by an external actuary, using the projected unit credit method. 
 
18/2 The movement in the present value of the Employees’ post employment benefits 
 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
The present value of the obligation at the beginning of the year  9982,02   865,766 
The service cost and interest charged to the profit or loss statement  249,698  120,574 
Actuarial gain /(loss)  (21,068)  65,083 
Paid benefits  (14,733)  (69,394) 
The present value of the obligation at the end of the year   1,195,926  982,029 
 
18/3 Principal Actuarial Assumptions 
 

  31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
  (Annually Percentage) 
The expected rate of increase in employee salaries  2%   2%  
Discount rate  %2,97  2,78%  
death rate  AM 92 Ultimate  AM92 Ultimate 
The employee turnover rate   Average   Average 
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18. Employees’ post employment benefits (Continued) 
 
18/4 Sensitivity Analysis 
The following table shows the approximate effect on the defined benefit obligation if the Company were to change 
one major assumption while keeping the other actuarial assumptions unchanged. The sensitivity analysis aims to 
clarify the uncertainty inherent in assessing the defined benefit obligation under market conditions at the 
measurement date. Their results cannot be extrapolated due to the non-linear effects that changes in the principal 
actuarial assumptions may have on the total defined benefit obligation. 
 
 Sensitivity Analysis of significant actuarial assumptions 

 Change in assumption 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 

Discounted Rate  
+1٪  1,574,504 1,377,489 
-1٪  1,760,314 1,534,484 

Long-Term Salary  
+1٪  1,769,530 1,542,650 
-1٪  1,564,607 1,368,793 

Death rates  
+20٪  1,660,523 1,450,657 
-20٪  1,660,563 1,450,637 

Withdrawal rates  
+1٪  1,657,403 1,449,511 
-1٪  1,663,702 1,451,678 

 
19. Accrued Expenses and Other Payables 
 

 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Accrued expenses 129,215  210,030 
Advance payments from customers  142,415   147,933 
Accrued staff  1,173,864  1,298,910 
Allowance for attending sessions  237,623   275,623 
Rentals in advance --  500,000 
Others  538,454   448,484 
 2,221,571   2,880,980 
 
20. Stock sale surplus and unpaid profits 

 31 December 
2021  31 December 2020 

Shares sale surplus (20 / a) 45,177,395  45,255,836 
Unpaid profits (20 / b)  6,103,741   6,115,724 
 51,281,136  51,371,560 
 
20/1  Share sale surplus 
The balance of the surplus sale of shares amounted to SR 45,177,395, and it represents the surplus of the sale of 
shares belonging to shareholders who did not commit themselves to pay the capital installments at the specified time  
The Company, after taking the procedures and approvals in this regard, sold the shares whose owners did not pay the 
required installments and the sale was made at a price higher than the value of the required installments, and therefore 
the difference between the sale value and the value of the installments required for the benefit of these shareholders 
was recorded and The Company disburses the amounts to whoever provides documents supporting his eligibility in 
compensation. 
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20. Stock sale surplus and unpaid profits (Continued) 
 
20/1  Share sale surplus (Continued) 
Details of the movement on this account are as follows: 
 

 31 December 
2021  31 December 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the year 45,255,836  45,321,197 
Paid during the year (78,441)  (65,361) 
Balance at the end of the year  45,177,395  45,255,836 
 
20/B  unpaid profits 
Shares profits not Paid amounted to SR 6,103,741, which are balances from 1991 and earlier, and are as follows: 

 31 December 
2021  31 December 2020 

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,115,724  6,121,420 
paid during the year (11,983)   )5,696(  
Balance at the end of the year  6,103,741  6,115,724 
 
21. Investment properties’ purchase payable 
Creditors to purchase investment properties as of 31 December, 2021 amounted to SR 33,438,374                               
(2020: SR 33,438,374), which is the remainder of the purchase value of Al Ofuq land. 
 
22. Under writing creditors 
It represents the sums owed to the shareholders in return for a subscription surplus for the shares allocated to them, 
an amount of SR 1,365,535. 
 
23. Zakat provision 
 
1/23 Zakat position 
The Company submitted its declarations to the General Authority for Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“the 
ZATCA”) until the year ending on 31 December, 2020, and the Company obtained a certificate from the General 
Authority for Zakat and Income, valid until 18 Ramadan 1443 corresponding to 30 April, 2022. 
 
The last final Zakat assessment obtained by the Company for the year ending in 2006. It includes the balance based 
on the last installment of the Zakat differentials due for the years from 2002 to 2006, amounting to SR 1,281,437. 
 
The Company received letters from the General Authority for Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“the ZATCA”) 
amending the zakat declarations submitted for the period from 2014 to 2018 and demanding payment of zakat 
differences for the years referred to, with a total amount of SR 13.26 million, noting that the Company submitted 
zakat declarations and paid zakat for those years based on a calculation mechanism External consultants and auditors 
for zakat accounts and it is worth noting that according to these letters, the Company has the right to object to these 
amendments during the statutory period (sixty days) from the date of receiving these letters. Accordingly, the 
Company has raised a list of objection to these amendments during the statutory period and the payment of 10% of 
The disputed amounts.  
 
Based on the assessment of the zakat advisor in objecting to the amendments, he sees that the amounts due for zakat 
are SR 39,472,727.  
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23. Zakat provision (Continued) 
 
23/1 Zakat position (Continued) 
The Company received letters from the General Authority for Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“the ZATCA”) 
amending the zakat declarations submitted for the period from 2019 to 2020 and demanding payment of zakat 
differences for the years referred to, with a total amount of SR 7,87 million, noting that the Company submitted zakat 
declarations and paid zakat for those years based on a calculation mechanism External consultants and auditors for 
zakat accounts and it is worth noting that according to these letters. Accordingly, the Company has raised a list of 
objection to these amendments during the statutory period and the payment of 25% of The disputed amounts.  
Based on the assessment of the zakat advisor in objecting to the amendments, he sees that the amounts due for zakat 
are SR6,025,782.  
 
23/2 The Zakat base 
Zakat is calculated at a rate of 2.5% based on the Zakat base or adjusted net income, whichever is greater, taking into 
account the accounting period 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
Net profit 8,599,466  (582,927) 
End of service benefits for employees 249,698  120,574 
Legal provision --  55,000 
Provision for Investment in financial leasing contracts 2,164,489   
Impairment Prepayments and other receivables 300,000   
Impairment in the value of trade receivables 681,488  969,855 
Adjusted net profit  11,995,141  562,502 
    
Share capital  300,000,000  300,000,000 
Reserves 334,431  513,254 
Adjusted profit 11,995,141  562,502 
(Accumulated losses) / Retained earnings )11,706,159(   )5,338,699(  
Deferred revenue 58,000,000  58,000,000 
Underwriting creditors 1,365,535  1,365,535 
Accrued and trade Payables 2,490,423  2,752,921 
Surplus stock sale payable 51,281,136  51,371,560 
Creditors to purchase investment properties 33,438,374  33,438,374 
Provisions 6,999,023  6,232,984 
    
Deduct:    
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net )28,191,891(   )21,262,082(  
Property Investments )224,082,091(   )217,911,706(  
Spare parts )4,410,123(   )4,512,048(  
Net investment in finance leases - non-current portion )139,585,454(   )132,938,530(  
Bank account to pay share holders )173,078(   -- 
Assets held for sale  --  )10,462,166(  
Zakat base 57,755,267  61,811,899 
The adjusted net profit or the zakat base, whichever is greater 57,755,267  61,811,899 
Zakat 1,483,891  1,545,297 
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23. Zakat provision (Continued) 
 
23/3 Zakat movement 
Movements’ summary for the years ended December 31 are as follows: 

  31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,813,549  2,950,655 
Formed durning the year 1,483,891  1,545,297 
Formed to meet zakat differeances  6,025,782  2,035,157 
Paid during the year for zakat differences  )1,968,138(   -- 
Paid during the year )1,597,203(   )2,717,560(  
 7,757,881  3,813,549 
    

 
24. Revenues 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
Financial leasing rentals 7,477,326  7,692,693 
Operating leases rentals 3,795,556  3,800,000 
Dates sales 100,000  165,217 
 11,372,882  11,657,910 
 
25. Cost of Revenues 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
Depreciation of  investments in properties  1,177,313   1,174,180 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Notes 6)  293,093   274,651 
Salaries and wages  125,079   112,915 
End of service benefits expense (Formed)  7,809   7,393 
Commodity supplies  80,305   92,212 
Governmental fees  50,040   21,834 
Maintenance and spare parts  14,425   26,014 
Other   47,658   43,145 
 1,795,722   1,752,344 

 
26. Selling and Distribution expenses  

  31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
Salaries and wages  27,367  155,286 
End of service benefits expense(Formed)  2,799  11,163 
Advertising  1,501  1,200 
  31,667  167,649 
27. General and Adminstrative expenses  

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
(Restated)  

Salaries and wages 3,778,052  2,651,596 
Professional and consulting fees 1,583,071  1,190,120 
Allowance to attend sessions  242,000   196,900 
Government fees 108,937  209,580 
Depreciation: Property, plant and equipment(note 6) 1,106,133  1,101,706 
End of service benefits expense (formed) 239,090  102,018 
Post, phone and electricity 51,123  61,790 
Maintenance, spare parts and fuels 38,849  49,701 
Advertising  9,495   17,064 
Other  189,946  99,627 
 67,346,69   5,680,102 
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28. Capital loss  

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
Capital gain on sale Property and Equipment 195,722  (103,659) 
Capital loss on disposal of investment in property (fruitfil trees) (952,360)  -- 
 (756,638)  (103,659) 
 
29. Earning/(Loss) per share 
The proft/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year. 
 
The share from the profit for the year was calculated as follows: 
 
A) profit per shares of the year  

 2021 
  2020 

(Restated) 
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,089,793  )5,127,698(  
Weighted average number of shares available 30,000,000  30,000,000 
Profit /(Loss) per share – in Saudi riyals  0.036  )0.171(  

 
B) Profit per shares from other comprehensive profit for the year   

 2021  2020 
(Restated) 

Profit /Loss for the year from other comprehensive profit for the year   1,110,861  )5,192,781(  
Weighted average number of shares available 30,000,000  30,000,000 
Profit/ (loss) per share– in Saudi riyals  70.03   )0.173(  
 

30. Legal position 
The existing cases and claims filed (from / against) the Company are summarized as follows: 

 
- A lawsuit filed by the Company against the branch of the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture (the 

“Ministry”) in the Qassim region, which relates to the request to cancel the negative decision represented in the 
branch of the ministry’s refusal to submit to the Supreme Court a request for the Company’s ownership of the 
entire area it revived from the land handed to it. An approval was issued by the High Commissioner for the 
Company to own an area of only 74 million square meters of the area that it revived The Company has filed a 
request to the Supreme court claiming ownership of the remaining land space that is considered part of the gross 
land revived amounting to 116 million square meters Note: Assuming that the Company loses the lawsuit, it will 
fundamentally affect the Company due to the connection of the disputed land with the rental income contracts 
entered into by the Company, which represents the Company’s main source of income. The expected losses can 
only be determined at the final settlement of the lawsuit. March 30, 2021 AD A preliminary ruling from the 
Administrative Court in the Qassim region in the case filed by the Qassim Investment Holding Company against 
the branch of the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture in the Qassim region not to accept the case, 
and based on the opinion of the Company’s legal advisor that the reason for rejecting the case is due to the lack 
of jurisdiction of the Administrative Court to consider the case and that the competent It is a committee in the 
Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture. The Company received the judgment and objected to it before 
the Administrative Court of Appeal, and the case was registered with No. 446/1442 in the Administrative Court 
of Appeal in the Qassim region, and the date of the first session was set on August 31, 2021 AD. 
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31. Legal position (Continued) 

 
-  On May 18, 2021 AD, the Company received a letter from the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture, 

dated 24 Ramadan 1442 AH, regarding the Sheri land, in which the Ministry hopes to pay the same rent for the 
encroached area, which the Company revived from the date of seizure until the date of 24 Ramadan 1442 AH to 
the state treasury in favor of the Ministry, and since There is an existing lawsuit filed against the branch of the 
Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture, in which the Company demands that the Company cancel the 
decision represented in the ministry’s refraining from submitting to the Supreme Court by requesting the 
Company’s ownership of the entire area that the Company has revived from the land delivered to it. The Company 
objected to the decision on July 14, 2021. 

 
-  The Administrative Court of Appeal in the Qassim region issued a ruling to annul the judgment issued on 

8/17/1442 AH by the First Circuit of the Administrative Court in Buraidah in the case registered in No. (228) for 
the year 1442 AH, ruling that the case was not accepted, and the Ministry of Environment, Water and Agriculture’s 
negative decision of its abstention Regarding the referral of the grievance of Al-Qassim Investment Holding 
Company for not owning the entire area that it has revived from the land allocated to it to the committee stipulated 
in Article 10 of the Immigrant Land Distribution System. The judgment was received on 03/03/1443 AH, and a 
request was submitted to raise the case to the committee. 

 
- The Company's lawsuit against Al Bandariyah Group, which is a financial case before the Commercial Court in 

Riyadh, and the required amount is SR 27,828,162, and a judgment was issued against the defendant in favor of 
the Company to pay the aforementioned amount on 14/5/1439 corresponding to 31/1/2018. The judgment acquired 
the definitive character of a decision issued by the Court of Appeal in Riyadh confirming the ruling of the 
Commercial Court at the Board of Grievances in Riyadh on 14/5/1440 corresponding to 8/1/2019. The defendant 
submitted a petition to the judgment and the petition was rejected, but the plaintiff appealed the rejection ruling 
on 18/2/1442, corresponding to 5/10/2020, the appeal was rejected However, the defendant submitted another 
petition on 11/8/1442 AH, and a session was set for her on 5/4/1443 AH corresponding to 11 November 2021 
AD, and a decision was issued by the Court of Appeal to suspend the execution of the judgment until the decision 
on accepting the petition from or not. 
 

- The Company’s lawsuit regarding lawyer’s fees against Al-Bandariah Group is a lawyer’s fee lawsuit demanded 
by the defendants Company, and a judgment was issued in favor of the Company obligating the defendants to pay 
the amount of (1,400,000) one million four hundred thousand Saudi riyals. The judgment of the Commercial 
Court, and accordingly, the Company submitted a request to set aside the judgment before the Supreme Court on 
28/10/2020 AD and on 1/3/2021AD, the Supreme Court issued a decision not to accept the objection to the 
judgment  
 

- A lawsuit from a citizen against the Company, where he demands the Company for an amount of 7,000,000 Saudi 
riyals, due to the damage of his land adjacent to the Company’s land from the Company’s project in a sheri center. 
A judgment was issued in favor of the Company dismissing the case on 20/2/1443 AH, and The judgment was 
approved by the Court of Appeal on September 27, 2021. 
 

-  A lawsuit from a citizen against the Company, where he demands the Company for an amount of 7,000,000 Saudi 
riyals, due to the damage of his land adjacent to the Company’s land from the Company’s project in a Sheri center. 
A judgment was issued in favor of the Company to dismiss the case on 12/7/1442 AH. The plaintiff's attorney 
submitted an objection on the judgment, and it was reserved again, on 9/4/1443 AH. On 17/6/1443 AH A judgment 
was issued to reject the case. 
 

- The Company’s lawsuit against Al Wusta Food stuff Corporation, which is a financial lawsuit before the 
Commercial Court in Riyadh, and the required amount is 118,003 Saudi riyals. A judgment was issued in favor 
of the Company to oblige the defendant to pay the full amount, and it was agreed between the two parties to 
schedule the payment of the amount, and the implementation of the agreement between the two parties is 
underway. 
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30. Legal position (Continued) 
 
-  The Company’s lawsuit against a customer, where the Company demands 103,348 riyals, the value of wheat sold 

to the defendant, and the lawsuit was restricted, but a note was received from the Judicial Audit Center that the 
defendant’s address is incorrect and the defendant’s address is being searched to respond to the center.  
 

-  A lawsuit from the Company against one of the clients, a financial lawsuit, the value of dates sales amounted to 
421,503 Saudi riyals, in which a judgment was issued in favor of the Company for the full amount, but there was 
a difference in the record of the defendant’s guarantor, which resulted in a reconsideration of the judgment issued, 
A date for the lawsuit was set on 17/9/1443 AH. 
 

- The Company’s lawsuit against one of the clients, where the Company demands an amount of 15,409 riyals with 
the Sixth Judicial Department of the General Court in Riyadh, and is A date for the lawsuit was set on 26/8/1443 
 

- Request for execution of a position by the Company against one of the clients due to the client’s delay in paying 
the amount of 640,000 Saudi riyals on the date of September 16, 2021 AD, which is issued with a promissory note 
as a guarantee for payment. A request to execute the order was submitted on 23/2/1443 AH, and the request is 
being pursued 
 

- A legal financial lawsuit against the Abdul Rahman Abdullah Foundation as a result of the Company selling to 
the defendant by public auction vehicles and equipment, where the defendant Company claims compensation for 
traffic violations that have not yet been determined, in addition to its human rights claims in obligating it to transfer 
the ownership of the vehicles sold according to the sales contract, and a judgment was issued in return The case 
for lack of jurisdiction, and accordingly, the Company has appealed this ruling to the Court of Appeal, and no 
session has been set for hearing the case before the Court of Appeal so far. 
 

- A lawsuit filed by the plaintiff by the Arab Wabel Investment Company against the defendant, Al-Qassim 
Investment Holding Company, with a value of 34,151,766 Saudi riyals, representing the remainder of the unpaid 
value from the share of Al-Qassim Holding Company in the land of the horizon. The plaintiff requests that the 
defendant be obligated to pay the remaining dues, and I also request that she be obligated to pay attorney's fees, 
an amount of 3,000,000 riyals. 

 
31. Segment reporting 

 
Operating sector 
The Company's products are manufactured in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, and no sector has achieved any of the 
quantitative limits referred to in the International Financial Reporting Standard “Operating Sectors No. 8”, and 
accordingly, the operational segment information has not been disclosed in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Geographical sector 
Local sales represent 100% of the Company's sales as of 2021 (2020: 100% local sales). All of the Company's assets 
and liabilities are located in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
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32. Financial risk management 
 
A) Financial risk factors 
The Company's activities expose the following financial risks: 
 
Credit risk. 
Liquidity risk. 
Market risk (commission rates, foreign exchange risk, price risk and fair value risk). 
Foreign exchange risk 
Commission rate risk 
Price risk 
Fair value risk 
Capital risk management 
Concentration risks 
 
The Company's comprehensive risk management program focuses on areas where financial market predictability is 
scarce and seeks to minimize potential negative impacts on the Company's financial performance. 
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that will be recognized on the date of the financial position if the 
counterparties fail to comply with the contract. The Company has policies in place to limit its exposure to credit 
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is as follows: 
 
 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 

Financial assets    
Cash and cash equivalents 19,281,287  28,880,817 
Trade receivables 2,781,735  739,465 
Installment sales contracts’debtors  12,085,322  12,462,210 
Investment in finance lease contracts 141,774,039  137,084,315 
Prepayments and other receivables 1,582,842  23,766 
Total financial liabilities  177,505,225   179,190,573  

 
Below aging of trade receivables is as follows: 
 

more than 365 
day Current Total 31 december 2021 
1,484,716 2,781,735 4,266,451 Trade receivable 

)1,484,716( -- )1,484,716( Expected credit loss 
-- 2,781,735 2,781,735 Balance at the end of the year 

100% -- -- Loss rate 
 

 
more than 365 

day Current Total 31 december 2020 
1,332,116 739,465 2,071,581 Trade receivable 

(1,332,116) -- (1,332,116) Expected credit loss 
-- 739,465 739,465 Balance at the end of the year 

100% -- -- Loss rate 
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will not be able to fulfill a contractual obligation and 
cause the other party to lose money. Financial assets that expose the Company to credit risk mainly consist of trade 
and other receivables, installment sales receivables, investment in finance lease contracts, cash and the like. 
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32. Financial risk management (Continued)  
 
Credit risk (Continued) 
Trade receivables The Company applies the simplified model included in the accounting policies to realize the 
expected credit losses over the life of the instrument for all trade receivables, as these items do not have a significant 
financing factor. When measuring expected credit losses, trade receivables are assessed on an aggregate basis, 
respectively, and categorized based on common credit risk characteristics and term to maturity. 
 
An impairment analysis is performed at each financial reporting date using a dedicated ECL measurement table. 
The provision rates are based on the maturity period for different customer segments with similar loss patterns (ie 
by geographic region, type of service and type of customer). The calculation shows likely likely results and 
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions, 
and expectations about future economic conditions. 

 
Trade receivables are written off (ie derecognised) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. A default 
within 365 days from the date of the invoice and the inability to make, among other things, an alternative payment 
arrangement with the Company is indicative of an unreasonable expectation of recovery and therefore is considered 
as credit impairment. 
 
Financial Instruments and Cash Equivalents 
The Company's bank balances, which are measured at amortized cost, are considered low risk and the loss allowance 
is calculated based on the expected losses for a period of 12 months. 
 
The balances with the Company's own banks are placed in financial institutions with good credit rating and no 
current history of default. Based on management's assessment, the impact of ECLs arising from these financial assets 
is immaterial to the Company. 
 
The maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk resulting from default or non-payment of the counterparty is 
limited to the book value of the receivable from related parties, trade and other receivables, installment sales 
receivables, investment in finance lease contracts, cash and the like. 
 
Due to the Company's long-term relationships with counterparties and after taking into account its clients' financial 
position, the Company's management does not expect those parties to fail to fulfill their obligations towards the 
Company. 
 
The Company's management focuses on credit risk by monitoring the creditworthiness of the existing customers on 
a quarterly basis and by monthly reviewing the aging analysis of the debt from trade receivables. In monitoring 
customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to credit characteristics. Clients classified as "high risk" are 
classified on the list of clients who are not dealt with, and forward contracts are not entered into except with the 
approval of the Board of Directors, or payment is made in advance. 

 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with 
financial obligations. Liquidity requirements are monitored on a regular basis and management attempts to provide 
sufficient liquidity to meet any commitments as they arise. 
 
It is the Company's policy to ensure that it always has enough liquidity to be able to meet its obligations as they fall 
due. To achieve this goal, it seeks to maintain cash balances to meet projected requirements for a period of no less 
than 30 days. 
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32. Financial risk management (Continued)  

 
Liquidity risk (Continued) 
The following are the entitlements according to the financial liabilities at the end of the fiscal year: - 
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk includes three types of risk: foreign exchange risk, commission rate risk and 
other price risk. 
 
Foreign exchange risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates. Most of the Company's transactions are in Saudi riyals or currencies pegged to the Saudi riyal. 
Therefore, the impact of foreign currency risk on the Company is not significant. 
 
Commission rate risk 
Commission rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 
to changes in market commission rates. 
The Company is not exposed to commission rate risk, as the Company does not have any commission bearing 
financial instruments. 
 
 

                                                                              31 December, 2021 

On request or less 
than a year 

 
Book value 

 

   Financial liabilities 
51,281,136  51,281,136 Stock sale surplus and unpaid profits 
33,438,374  33,438,374 Investment properties’ purchase payable 
1,365,535  1,365,535 Underwriting creditors 
2,221,571  2,221,571  Accrued expenses and other payables 

887,503  503887,  Trade payables 
7,757,881  7,757,881 Zakat payable 

96,952,000  96,952,000  

 

On request or less than 
a year 

 
Book value 

 

   Financial liabilities 

51,371,560  51,371,560 Stock sale surplus and unpaid profits 
 

33,438,374  33,438,374 Investment properties’ purchase payable 
1,365,535  1,365,535 Underwriting creditors 
2,880,980  2,880,980 Accrued expenses and other payables 

887,503  887,503 Trade payables 
3,813,549  3,813,549 Zakat payable 

93,757,501  93,757,501  

 

                                                                                  31 December, 2020 (restaed) 
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32. Financial risk management (Continued)  
 
Price risk 
Price risk is the risk that the value of a Company's financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market 
prices due to factors other than the movement of foreign exchange rates and commissions. 
 
Price risk arises mainly from uncertainty about the prices of future financial instruments that the Company owns. 
The Company's management closely monitors the price movement of its financial instruments listed in foreign 
markets. 
 
Fair value risk 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets depends on the quoted market prices at the end of 
trading on the reporting date. Unreported instruments are valued at the most recent offer price. 
 
An active market is a market in which assets and liabilities are traded with sufficient frequency and volume to 
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The carrying value less provision for impairment, if any, of 
financial instruments recorded at amortized cost is assumed to approximate their fair value. 
The fair value hierarchy contains the following levels: 
` 
Level 1: market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that may be reached on the 
measurement date. 
Level 2: Valuation techniques at which the lowest level of income that is significant to the fair value measurement 
can be directly or indirectly observed. 
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which it is not possible to observe the lowest level of income that is significant 
to the fair value measurement. 
 
The following table analyzes the financial instruments of the Company on 31 December, 2021 and 31 December, 
2020 according to the level of the hierarchy For the fair value (by category) into which the fair value measurement 
is categorized: 

 
Equity   2021  2020 

First level  --  -- 
Second level  --  -- 
Third level   15,034,407  13,677,264 
  15,034,407  13,677,264 
 
* The third level investments include investments in equity instruments of companies not listed on the financial 

market in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 
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33. prior year Adjustment 

 
a) Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2020 

 

 
 

33. prior year Adjustment (continued) 

 
31 December  2020 
Issued perviously Adjustment 

31 December  
2020 Restated 

ASSETS    
Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment 21,262,082 8,258,087 29,520,169 
Investment properties  217,911,706 -- 217,911,706 
Installment sales contracts’ debtors – Non current portion 12,085,322 -- 12,085,322 
Investment in finance lease contracts- Non current 
portion 

132,938,530 -- 132,938,530 

Investment in joint venture -- -- -- 
Total non-current assets 384,197,640 8,258,087 392,455,727 
    
Current assets    
Inventories 296,024 -- 296,024 
Assets held for sale 10,462,166 (10,462,166)  
Trade receivables 739,465 -- 739,465 
Installment sales contracts’ debtors – current portion 376,888 -- 376,888 
Investment in finance lease contracts – current portion 4,145,785 -- 4,145,785 
Prepayments and other receivables 909,572 -- 2909,57  
Investments at fair value through profit and loss 13,677,264 -- 13,677,264 
Cash and cash equivalents 28,880,817 -- 28,880,817 
Total current assets 59,487,981 (10,462,166) 49,025,815 
TOTAL ASSETS 443,685,621 (2,204,079) 441,481,542 
    EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
EQUITY    
Share capital 300,000,000 -- 300,000,000 
Statutory reserve 334,431 -- 334,431 
Other reserve 113,740 -- 113,740 
Accumulated losses )9,502,080(  (2,204,079) )11,706,159(  
Total EQUITY 290,946,091 (2,204,079) 288,742,012 

LIABILITIES    
Non-current liabilities    
Employees’ post employment benefits 982,029 -- 982,029 
Deferred revenue  58,000,000 -- 58,000,000 
Total non-current liabilities 58,982,029 -- 58,982,029 
Current liabilities    
Stock sale surplus and unpaid profits 51,371,560 -- 51,371,560 
Investment properties’ purchase payable 33,438,374 -- 33,438,374 
Underwriting creditors 1,365,535 -- 1,365,535 
Trade payables 887,503 -- 887,503 
Accrued expenses and other payables 2,880,980 -- 2,880,980 
Zakat payable 3,813,549 -- 3,813,549 
Total current liabilities 93,757,501 -- 93,757,501 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 152,739,530 -- 152,739,530 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 443,685,621 )2,204,079(  441,481,542 
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a) Statement of Financial Position (continued) 
 
Property, plant and equipment, net 

 31 December  
2020Previously issued Adjustments 

31 December  2020  
Reslated 

Assets held for sale 10,462,166 (10,462,166) -- 
Accumulated losses 9,502,080 2,204,079 11,706,159 
Property, plant and equipment 21,262,082 8,258,087 29,520,169 
 
• The increase in property and equipment, net is represented in the reclass of assets held for sale to property and 
equipment after the previously agreed upon project has ceased and depreciation of property and equipment has been 
calculated over the previous periods from the date of the transition, and is charged to the Accumulated loss. 
 
Investments in joint venture 
Investments in joint operations amounting to 125,000 Saudi riyals on 22/4/1437 AH corresponding to 1/2/2016 AD 
represents the value of 50 shares in the capital of Al-Qassim Trading and Real Estate Contracting Company with 
limited liability out of a total of 100 equal shares with Wabel Investment Company. The investment was recognized 
and paid on 15/4/2019 as an expense and charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
The investment was not recorded in previous years, the Company was discontinued, and no financial statements were 
issued from 31/12/2016 AD, so the investment value was completely written off. 
 
b) Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

 31 December 2020  
Previously issued 

 
Adjustments Reclass  

31 December 
2020  

Restated 
Revenues 11,657,910 -- -- 11,657,910 
Cost of revenues )1,752,344(  -- -- )1,752,344(  
Gross profit 9,905,566 --  9,905,566 
Selling and distribution expenses )167,649(  -- -- )167,649(  
General and administrative expenses )4,475,651(  -- )1,204,451(  )5,680,102(  
Provision for expected credit losses  )969,855(  -- -- )969,855(  
Profit from operations 4,292,411 -- )1,204,451(  3,087,960 
Loss on sale of property,plant and 
equipment 

9332,524,  -- -- 9332,524,  

Capital gain/(loss) )659103,(  -- -- )659103,(  
Dividends recieved 43,997 -- -- 43,997 
Inverment loss on investment property )26,950,72(  -- -- )26,950,72(  
Provision for judicial settlements )55,000(  -- -- )55,000(  
Provision no longer required 67,419 -- -- 67,419 
Other income  )584,240(  -- 78,412 )162,172(  
Net profit from continuing operations )421,205(  -- )1,126,039(  )421,205(  
Loss from discontinued operations )161,722(  )964,317(  1,126,039 -- 
Net profit for the year before zakat )582,927(  )964,317(  -- )1,547,244(  
Zakat )3,580,454(  -- -- )3,580,454(  
Net profit for the year after zakat )4,163,381(  )964,317(  -- )5,127,698(  

Other Comprehensive Income:     
Actuarial loss on remeasurement of defined 
benefit obligation 

)65,083(  -- -- (65,083) 

Total comprehensive (loss) / profit for 
the year 

)4,228,464(  )964,317(  -- )5,192,781(  
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33. prior year Adjustment (continued) 
 
(loss) from discontinued operations 

 31 December2020  
Issued previously Adjustments 31 December 

2020 Restated 
Depreceation expense -- 964,317 964,317 
Accumulated depreceation -- (964,317) (964,317) 
 
• The increase in loss of discontinued operations is to reclassify assets for sale to property, plant and equipment after 
it is clear that the agreed project has stopped, the impairment of property, machinery and equipment was calculated 
on previous periods of transformation; and the impairment part of  31 December 2020 was charged.   
 
34. Impact of the Covid-19 Pendamic 
The outbreak of the new Corona virus ("Covid-19") since the beginning of 2020, and its spread in China and then 
worldwide, has caused disruption to business and economic activity globally, including the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia, and the World Health Organization declared the virus to be classified as a pandemic, which necessitated the 
establishment of management The Company shall review its significant judgments when applying the Company's 
accounting policies, methods of calculation, and the main sources of estimates applied to the annual financial 
statements for the year ending on 31 December, 2021. Although it is difficult now to predict the full extent and 
duration of the resulting impact on commercial and economic businesses, the Company’s management has fully 
evaluated the impact on the operations and aspects of the Company's business operations, and it has been found, as 
at the date of issuance of these financial statements, that substantial changes are not required to the judgments and 
estimates. Main. However, in light of the current lack of clarity, any future change in assumptions and estimates 
may result in a material adjustment to the carrying values of the assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Given 
the rapidly evolving situation and the associated uncertainty, management will continue to evaluate the resulting 
impact in accordance with future developments. 

 
35. Comparative figures 
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 
 

36. Approval of the financial statements 
The accompanying financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27th Shabaan , 
1443, corresponding to 30th  March , 2022. 
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